

NOTICE & PROXY STATEMENT

2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

June 13, 2022 1 p.m. (Eastern time)

April 29, 2022

To Our Stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of Zeta Global Holdings Corp. at 1 p.m. Eastern time, on Monday, June 13, 2022 at the offices of Latham & Watkins LLP, 1271 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10020.

The Notice of Meeting and Proxy Statement on the following pages describe the matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting. Please see the section called "Who can attend the Annual Meeting?" on page 3 of the proxy statement for more information about how to attend the meeting.

Whether or not you attend the Annual Meeting, it is important that your shares be represented and voted at the Annual Meeting. Therefore, I urge you to promptly vote and submit your proxy by phone, via the Internet, or, if you received paper copies of these materials, by signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed envelope, which requires no postage if mailed in the United States. If you have previously received our Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, then instructions regarding how you can vote are contained in that notice. If you have received a proxy card, then instructions regarding how you can vote are contained on the proxy card. If you decide to attend the Annual Meeting, you will be able to vote in person, even if you have previously submitted your proxy. In such case, your previously submitted proxy will be disregarded.

Thank you for your support.

Sincerely,

David Steinberg

Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder

Table of Contents

	Page
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS	iii
PROXY STATEMENT	1
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2022 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS	3
PROPOSALS TO BE VOTED ON	6
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	10
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES AND OTHER MATTERS	11
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	12
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	13
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD	16
EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	19
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	26
DELINQUENT SECTION 16(a) REPORTS	28
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS	29
STOCKHOLDERS' PROPOSALS	
OTHER MATTERS	33
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES	34
ZETA'S ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K	35



NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 13, 2022

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of Zeta Global Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), will be held at 1 p.m. Eastern time on Monday, June 13, 2022 at the offices of Latham & Watkins LLP, 1271 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10020. The Annual Meeting will be held for the following purposes:

- To elect William Royan and Jené Elzie as Class I directors to serve until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified;
- To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022; and
- To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any continuation, postponement, or adjournment of the Annual Meeting.

Holders of record of our common stock as of the close of business on April 18, 2022 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting, or any continuation, postponement or adjournment of the Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting may be continued or adjourned from time to time without notice other than by announcement at the Annual Meeting.

It is important that your shares be represented regardless of the number of shares you may hold. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we urge you to vote your shares via the toll-free telephone number or over the Internet, as described in the enclosed materials. If you received a copy of the proxy card by mail, you may sign, date and mail the proxy card in the enclosed return envelope. Promptly voting your shares will ensure the presence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting and will save us the expense of further solicitation. Submitting your proxy now will not prevent you from voting your shares at the Annual Meeting if you desire to do so, as your proxy is revocable at your option.

By Order of the Board of Directors

/s/ Steven Vine

Steven Vine General Counsel and Secretary

New York, NY April 29, 2022



PROXY STATEMENT

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Zeta Global Holdings Corp. (the "Company") of proxies to be voted at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Monday, June 13, 2022 (the "Annual Meeting"), at 1 p.m. Eastern time, and at any continuation, postponement, or adjournment of the Annual Meeting.

Holders of record of shares of our Class A common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Class A Stock"), and our Class B common stock, par value \$0.001 per share (the "Class B Stock," and together with our Class A Stock, the "Common Stock"), as of the close of business on April 18, 2022 (the "Record Date"), will be entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting and any continuation, postponement, or adjournment of the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, there were 166,154,305 shares of Class A Stock and 36,856,095 shares of Class B Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Each share of Class A Stock is entitled to one vote per share and each share of Class B Stock is entitled to 10 votes per share on any matter presented to stockholders at the Annual Meeting. The holders of Class A Stock and Class B Stock will vote together as a single class on all matters to be presented to stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

On or about April 29, 2022, we began to mail to our Stockholders of record as of the close of business on the Record Date a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Internet Notice") containing instructions on how to access this proxy statement and the Company's Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2021 (the "2021 Annual Report") and vote online.

In this proxy statement, "Zeta", "Company", "we", "us", and "our" refer to Zeta Global Holdings Corp.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE STOCKHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 13, 2022

This Proxy Statement and our 2021 Annual Report to Stockholders are available at www.edocumentview.com/ZETA

Proposals

At the Annual Meeting, our stockholders will be asked:

- To elect William Royan and Jené Elzie as Class I directors to serve until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified;
- To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022; and
- To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any continuation, postponement, or adjournment of the Annual Meeting.

We know of no other business that will be presented at the Annual Meeting. If any other matter properly comes before the stockholders for a vote at the Annual Meeting, however, the proxy holders named on the Company's proxy card will vote your shares in accordance with their best judgment.

Recommendations of the Board

The Board recommends that you vote your shares as indicated below. If you return a properly completed proxy card, or vote your shares by telephone or Internet, your shares of Common Stock will be voted on your behalf as you direct. If not otherwise specified, the shares of Common Stock represented by the proxies will be voted, and the Board of Directors recommends that you vote:

- FOR the election of William Royan and Jené Elzie as Class I directors to serve until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified; and
- FOR the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022.

If any other matter properly comes before the stockholders for a vote at the Annual Meeting, the proxy holders named on the Company's proxy card will vote your shares in accordance with their best judgment.

Information About This Proxy Statement

Why you received this proxy statement. You are viewing or have received these proxy materials because the Board is soliciting your proxy to vote your shares at the Annual Meeting. This proxy statement includes information that we are required to provide to you under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and that is designed to assist you in voting your shares.

Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials. As permitted by SEC rules, Zeta is making this proxy statement and its 2021 Annual Report available to its stockholders electronically via the Internet. On or about April 29, 2022, we mailed to our stockholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Internet Notice") containing instructions on how to access this proxy statement and our 2021 Annual Report and vote online. If you received an Internet Notice by mail, you will not receive a printed copy of the proxy materials in the mail unless you specifically request them. Instead, the Internet Notice instructs you on how to access and review all of the important information contained in the proxy statement and 2021 Annual Report. The Internet Notice also instructs you on how you may submit your proxy over the Internet. If you received an Internet Notice by mail and would like to receive a printed copy of our proxy materials, you should follow the instructions for requesting such materials contained on the Internet Notice.

Printed Copies of Our Proxy Materials. If you received printed copies of our proxy materials, then instructions regarding how you can vote are contained on the proxy card included in the materials.

Householding. The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries (e.g., brokers) to satisfy the delivery requirements for Notices of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or other Annual Meeting materials with respect to two or more stockholders sharing the same address by delivering a single Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or other Annual Meeting materials addressed to those stockholders. This process, which is commonly referred to as "householding," potentially means extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for companies.

This year, a number of brokers with account holders who are our stockholders will likely be "householding" our proxy materials. A single Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials will be delivered to multiple stockholders sharing an address unless contrary instructions have been received from the affected stockholders. Once you have received notice from your broker that they will be "householding" communications to your address, "householding" will continue until you are notified otherwise or until you revoke your consent. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in "householding" and would prefer to receive a separate Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, please notify your broker. Stockholders who currently receive multiple copies of the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials at their addresses and would like to request "householding" of their communications should contact their brokers.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2022 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

The Record Date for the Annual Meeting is April 18, 2022. You are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting only if you were a holder of record of Class A Stock or Class B Stock at the close of business on that date, or if you hold a valid proxy for the Annual Meeting. Each outstanding share of Class A Stock is entitled to one vote per share and each outstanding share of Class B Stock is entitled to 10 votes per share on all matters presented at the Annual Meeting. The holders of Class A Stock and Class B Stock will vote together as a single class on all matters presented to stockholders at the Annual Meeting. At the close of business on the Record Date, there were 166,154,305 shares of Class A Stock and 36,856,095 shares of Class B Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, representing 31% and 69% voting power of our Common Stock, respectively.

What is the difference between being a "record holder" and holding shares in "street name"?

A record holder holds shares in his or her name. Shares held in "street name" means shares that are held in the name of a bank or broker on a person's behalf.

Am I entitled to vote if my shares are held in "street name"?

Yes. If your shares are held by a bank or a brokerage firm, you are considered the "beneficial owner" of those shares held in "street name." If your shares are held in street name, these proxy materials are being provided to you by your bank or brokerage firm, along with a voting instruction card if you received printed copies of our proxy materials. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your bank or brokerage firm how to vote your shares, and the bank or brokerage firm is required to vote your shares in accordance with your instructions. If your shares are held in street name, you may not vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting, unless you obtain a legal proxy from your bank or brokerage firm.

How many shares must be present to hold the Annual Meeting?

A quorum must be present at the Annual Meeting for any business to be conducted. The presence at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority in voting power of the Common Stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote on the Record Date will constitute a quorum.

Who can attend the Annual Meeting?

You may attend the Annual Meeting only if you are a Zeta stockholder who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting, or if you hold a valid proxy for the Annual Meeting. If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, you must email the Company's investor relations staff at ir@zetaglobal.com no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on June 9, 2022 to have your name placed on the attendance list. In order to be admitted into the Annual Meeting, your name must appear on the attendance list and you must present government-issued photo identification (such as a driver's license). If your bank or broker holds your shares in street name, you will also be required to present proof of beneficial ownership of our common stock on the Record Date, such as the Internet Notice you received from your bank or broker, a bank or brokerage statement, or a letter from your bank or broker showing that you owned shares of our common stock at the close of business on the Record Date.

What if a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting?

If a quorum is not present at the scheduled time of the Annual Meeting, the Chairperson of the Annual Meeting is authorized by our Amended and Restated Bylaws to adjourn the meeting, without the vote of stockholders. In addition, in the absence of a quorum, if the Board so determines, the stockholders may adjourn the meeting by the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power present in person or represented by proxy of the outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote thereon.

What does it mean if I receive more than one Internet Notice or more than one set of proxy materials?

It means that your shares are held in more than one account at the transfer agent and/or with banks or brokers. Please vote all of your shares. To ensure that all of your shares are voted, for each Internet Notice or set of proxy materials,

please submit your proxy by phone, via the Internet, or, if you received printed copies of the proxy materials, by signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed envelope.

How do I vote?

Stockholders of Record. If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote:

- by Internet—You can vote over the Internet at www.investorvote.com/ZETA by following the instructions on the Internet Notice or proxy card;
- by Telephone—You can vote by telephone by calling 1-800-652-8683 and following the instructions on the proxy card;
- by Mail—You can vote by mail by signing, dating and mailing the proxy card, which you may have received by mail; or
- At the Meeting—You can vote in person at the meeting at the offices of Latham & Watkins LLP, 1271 Avenue of the America, New York, NY 10020 on June 13, 2022 at 1 p.m. EDT.

Internet and telephone voting facilities for stockholders of record will be available 24 hours a day and will close at 11:59 p.m., Eastern time, on June 12, 2022. To vote via the Internet or telephone, you will need the control number included on your Internet Notice, on your proxy card or on the instructions that accompanied your proxy materials.

Whether or not you expect to attend the Annual Meeting, we urge you to vote your shares as promptly as possible to ensure your representation and the presence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting. If you submit your proxy, you may still decide to attend the Annual Meeting and vote your shares.

Beneficial Owners of Shares Held in "Street Name." If your shares are held in "street name" through a bank or broker, you will receive instructions on how to vote from the bank or broker. You must follow their instructions in order for your shares to be voted. Internet and telephone voting also may be offered to stockholders owning shares through certain banks and brokers. If your shares are not registered in your own name and you would like to vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting, you should contact your bank or broker to obtain a legal proxy and bring it to the Annual Meeting in order to vote.

Can I change my vote after I submit my proxy?

Yes.

If you are a registered stockholder, you may revoke your proxy and change your vote:

- by submitting a duly executed proxy bearing a later date;
- by granting a subsequent proxy through the Internet or telephone;
- by giving written notice of revocation to the Secretary of Zeta prior to the Annual Meeting; or
- by voting at the Annual Meeting.

Your most recent proxy card or Internet or telephone proxy is the one that is counted. Your attendance at the Annual Meeting by itself will not revoke your proxy unless you give written notice of revocation to the Secretary before your proxy is voted or you vote in person at the Annual Meeting.

If your shares are held in street name, you may change or revoke your voting instructions by following the specific directions provided to you by your bank or broker, or you may vote in person at the Annual Meeting by obtaining a legal proxy from your bank or broker and submitting the legal proxy along with your ballot.

Who will count the votes?

A representative of Computershare, our inspector of election, will tabulate and certify the votes.

What if I do not specify how my shares are to be voted?

If you submit a proxy but do not indicate any voting instructions, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors' recommendations are indicated on page 2 of this proxy statement, as well as with the description of each proposal in this proxy statement.

Will any other business be conducted at the Annual Meeting?

We know of no other business that will be presented at the Annual Meeting. If any other matter properly comes before the stockholders for a vote at the Annual Meeting, however, the proxy holders named on the Company's proxy card will vote your shares in accordance with their best judgment.

Will there be a question and answer session during the Annual Meeting?

As part of the Annual Meeting, we will hold a Q&A session, during which we intend to answer questions that are pertinent to the Company and the meeting matters, as time permits. Only stockholders that attend the Annual Meeting will be permitted to ask questions during the Annual Meeting. Each stockholder is limited to no more than two questions. Questions should be succinct and only cover a single topic. We will not address questions that are, among other things:

- irrelevant to the business of the Company or to the business of the Annual Meeting;
- related to material non-public information of the Company, including the status or results of our business since our last Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q;
- related to any pending, threatened or ongoing litigation;
- related to personal grievances or in furtherance of the stockholder's personal or business interests;
- derogatory references to individuals or that are otherwise in bad taste;
- substantially repetitious of questions already made by another stockholder;
- in excess of the two question limit; or
- out of order or not otherwise suitable for the conduct of the Annual Meeting as determined by the Chair or Secretary in their reasonable judgment.

How many votes are required for the approval of the proposals to be voted upon and how will abstentions and broker non-votes be treated?

Proposal	Votes required	Effect of Votes Withheld / Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes
Proposal 1: Election of Directors	The plurality of the votes cast. This means that the two (2) nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative "FOR" votes will be elected as Class I directors.	Votes withheld and broker non-votes will have no effect.
<u>Proposal 2</u> : Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority in voting power of the votes cast.	Abstentions will have no effect. We do not expect any broker non-votes on this proposal.

What is a "vote withheld" and an "abstention" and how will votes withheld and abstentions be treated?

A "vote withheld," in the case of the proposal regarding the election of directors, or an "abstention," in the cases of the proposals regarding the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm and the approval, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, of the frequency of future advisory votes on the compensation of our named executive officers, represents a stockholder's affirmative choice to decline to vote on a proposal. Votes withheld and abstentions are counted as present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining a quorum. Votes withheld have no effect on the election of directors. Abstentions have no effect on the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP or the approval, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, of the frequency of future advisory votes on the compensation of our named executive officers.

What are broker non-votes and do they count for determining a quorum?

Generally, broker non-votes occur when shares held by a broker in "street name" for a beneficial owner are not voted with respect to a particular proposal because the broker (1) has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner and (2) lacks discretionary voting power to vote those shares. A broker is entitled to vote shares held for a beneficial owner on routine matters, such as the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm, without instructions from the beneficial owner of those shares. On the other hand, absent instructions from the beneficial owner of such shares, a broker is not entitled to vote shares held for a beneficial owner on non-routine matters, such as the election of directors and the approval, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, of the frequency of future advisory votes on the compensation of our named executive officers. Broker non-votes count for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present.

Where can I find the voting results of the Annual Meeting?

We plan to announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and we will report the final results in a Current Report on Form 8-K, which we intend to file with the SEC within four business days of the date of the Annual Meeting.

PROPOSALS TO BE VOTED ON

Proposal 1: Election of Directors

At the Annual Meeting, two (2) Class I directors are to be elected to hold office until the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2025 and until each such director's respective successor is elected and qualified or until each such director's earlier death, resignation or removal.

We currently have six (6) directors on our Board. Our current Class I Directors are William Royan and Jené Elzie. The Board has nominated each of the foregoing director candidates to serve as Class I directors until the 2025 Annual Meeting.

The proposal regarding the election of directors requires the approval of a plurality of the votes cast. This means that the two (2) nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative "FOR" votes will be elected as Class I directors. Votes withheld and broker non-votes are not considered to be votes cast and, accordingly, will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal.

In accordance with our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws, our board of directors is divided into three classes with staggered three-year terms. At each annual meeting of stockholders, the successors to the directors whose terms will then expire will be elected to serve from the time of election and qualification until the third annual meeting following their election. The current class structure is as follows: Class I, whose current term will expire at the Annual Meeting, and, if elected at the Annual Meeting, whose subsequent term will expire at the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders; Class II, whose term will expire at the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders; and Class III, whose term will expire at the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The current Class I Directors are William Royan and Jené Elzie; the current Class II Directors are Robert Niehaus and William Landman; and the current Class III Directors are David Steinberg and John Sculley.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws provide that, subject to the rights of holders of any series of preferred stock, the authorized number of directors may be changed from time to time by the Board. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors will be distributed among the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-third of the directors. Prior to the Sunset Date, which is defined as the date as of which the holders of Class B Common Stock no longer hold a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock, subject to the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock then outstanding in respect of preferred stock directors, any director may only be removed with or without cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of our common stock. After the Sunset Date, any director may be removed only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares of our voting stock.

If you submit a proxy but do not indicate any voting instructions, the persons named as proxies will vote the shares of Common Stock represented thereby for the election as directors of the persons whose names and biographies appear below. In the event that any of William Royan and Jené Elzie should become unable to serve, or for good cause will not serve, as a director, it is intended that votes will be cast for a substitute nominee designated by the Board or the Board may elect to reduce its size. The Board has no reason to believe that any of the director nominees will be unable to serve if elected. Each of the director nominees has consented to being named in this proxy statement and to serve if elected.

Vote required

The proposal regarding the election of directors requires the approval of a plurality of the votes cast. This means that the two (2) nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative "FOR" votes will be elected as directors. Votes withheld and broker non-votes are not considered to be votes cast and, accordingly, will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the election of each of the below director nominees.

Nominees For Class I Director (terms to expire at the 2025 Annual Meeting)

The current members of the Board of Directors who are also nominees for election to the Board of Directors are as follows:

Name	Age	Served as a Director Since	Position with Zeta
William Royan	54	2017	Director
Jené Elzie	48	2021	Director

The principal occupations and business experience, for at least the past five years, of each director nominee for election at the Annual Meeting are as follows:

William Royan

William Royan has served on our board of directors since 2017. He is the Managing Partner and Chair of the Investment Committee of GPI Capital, an alternative investment firm. Previously, he was a member of the Global Management Committee and Chief Investment Officer of a predecessor fund of BTG Pactual, a global financial services firm. Mr. Royan has been a director of numerous public and private companies, including the TMX Group, a Canadian financial services company that operates various market exchanges, where he chaired its Governance Committee, and BTG Pactual, a financial company offering investment banking, as well as wealth and asset management services. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Calgary and an MBA from the University of Chicago.

We believe Mr. Royan is qualified to serve on our board of directors because of his background in financial services.

Jené Elzie

Jené Elzie has served on our board of directors since 2021. She has over three decades of experience as a sports and entertainment executive, having worked for and with some of the most respected global brands in the industry, including NBA, Golf Channel, Comcast/NBCUniversal, and Fox Sports. Since 2018, Ms. Elzie has served as Chief Growth Officer for Athletes First Partners, a sports marketing agency representing sports properties, including the National Basketball Players Association, the National Basketball Retired Players Association, and the US Olympic & Paralympic Committee. She also serves on the board of Varsity Brands, Inc. and Public Radio Exchange. From 2013 to 2018, she served as Vice President, International Marketing at the National Basketball Association. Ms. Elzie holds a bachelor's degree in economics and a master's degree in sociology, both from Stanford University.

We believe Ms. Elzie is qualified to serve on our board of directors because of her experience as an executive in the marketing, sports and entertainment industries.

Continuing members of the Board of Directors:

Class II Directors (terms to expire at the 2023 Annual Meeting)

The current members of the Board of Directors who are Class II Directors are as follows:

Name	Age	Served as a Director Since	Position with Zeta
William Landman	69	2008	Director
Robert Niehaus	66	2012	Director

William Landman

William Landman has served on our board of directors since 2008. Mr. Landman is the Co-founder and Managing Principal of MainLine Investment Partners, LLC, where he directs the investment activities, management and strategic initiatives of the company and its affiliates, MainLine Private Wealth and Merion Realty Partners. Since 1987, Mr. Landman has also been a Principal and Senior Managing Director of CMS Companies, an alternative investments firm. Further, he is a Senior Advisor at Renovus Capital, an education-oriented small business investment company, and is a Principal and Manager of Merion Residential, a real estate management company. He holds a BA from the University of Pittsburgh and a JD from the University of Pittsburgh School of Law.

We believe that Mr. Landman is qualified to serve on our board of directors due to his longstanding experience in investments and company management.

Robert Niehaus

Robert Niehaus has served on our board of directors since 2012 and has over 30 years of experience in investment and private equity. Mr. Niehaus is the Chairman and Founder of GCP Capital Partners LLC ("GCP") and has served as Chairman of GCP and its predecessor business Greenhill Capital Partners and their respective Investment Committees since 2000. In addition, Mr. Niehaus is Chairman of Iridium Communications Inc., a satellite communications company, and previously served as a Director for Heartland Payment Systems, a payments technology business. He holds a BA in international affairs from Princeton University and an MBA from Harvard Business School.

We believe Mr. Niehaus is qualified to serve on our board of directors due to his extensive corporate governance and investment strategy experience.

Class III Directors (terms to expire at the 2024 Annual Meeting)

The current members of the Board of Directors who are Class III Directors are as follows:

Name	Age	Served as a Director Since	Position with Zeta
David Steinberg 52		2007	Chairman and Chief
			Executive Officer

David Steinberg

David Steinberg has been a member of our board of directors since 2007 and is the Co-founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Zeta. Mr. Steinberg is also Chairman of CAIVIS Investment Company, Kica Investments and On Demand Pharmaceuticals. Previously, he was the founder and Chief Executive Officer of InPhonic, a seller of wireless phones and communications products and services. Prior to that he was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sterling Cellular. He holds a BA in Economics from Washington & Jefferson College.

We believe that Mr. Steinberg is qualified to serve on our board of directors due to his marketing and entrepreneurial background.

John Sculley

John Sculley has served on our board of directors since 2008 and is the Co-founder and Vice Chairman of Zeta. Since leaving his role of CEO at Apple Computer, Inc. in 1993, Mr. Sculley has focused on investing in early-stage companies as a venture capitalist and co-founder of several companies. He holds a BA from Brown University and an MBA from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania.

We believe Mr. Sculley is qualified to serve on our board of directors due to the expertise he brings in marketing and company leadership.

Proposal 2: Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Our Audit Committee has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. Our Board has directed that this appointment be submitted to our stockholders for ratification at the Annual Meeting. Although ratification of our appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP is not required, we value the opinions of our stockholders and believe that stockholder ratification of our appointment is a good corporate governance practice.

Deloitte & Touche LLP also served as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. Neither the accounting firm nor any of its members has any direct or indirect financial interest in or any connection with us in any capacity other than as our auditors, providing audit and non-audit services. A representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP is expected to attend the 2022 Annual Meeting and to have an opportunity to make a statement and be available to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders.

In the event that the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP is not ratified by the stockholders, the Audit Committee will consider this fact when it appoints the independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. Even if the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP is ratified, the Audit Committee retains the discretion to appoint a different independent auditor at any time if it determines that such a change is in the interest of the Company.

Vote Required

This proposal requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority in voting power of the votes cast. Abstentions are not considered to be votes cast and, accordingly, will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal. Because brokers have discretionary authority to vote on the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP, we do not expect any broker non-votes in connection with this proposal.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the Ratification of the Appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The audit committee reviews the Company's financial reporting process on behalf of the Board. Management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements, the reporting process and maintaining an effective system of internal controls over financial reporting. The Company's independent auditors are engaged to audit and express opinions on the conformity of the Company's financial statements to United States generally accepted accounting principles.

In addition to fulfilling its oversight responsibilities as set forth in its charter and further described in the section titled "Committees of the Board," the audit committee has done the following things:

- Prior to the filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, reviewed and discussed with management and Deloitte the Company's audited consolidated financial statements.
- Discussed with Deloitte the matters required to be discussed by Auditing Standard No. 1301 (Communications with Audit Committees), Auditing Standard 3101 related to the requirement for auditors to communicate critical audit matters in auditor reports, and any other matters required to be communicated to the committee by Deloitte under auditing standards established from time to time by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") or SEC rules and regulations.
- Evaluated Deloitte's qualifications, performance and independence (consistent with SEC requirements), which included the receipt and review of the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding Deloitte's communications with the audit committee concerning independence and discussions with Deloitte regarding its independence.

Based on the reviews and discussions with management and Deloitte cited above, including the review of Deloitte's disclosures and letter to the audit committee and review of the representations of management and the reports of Deloitte, the audit committee recommended to the board of directors that the Company's audited consolidated financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 filed with the SEC.

Robert Niehaus (Chair) William Royan William Landman

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES AND OTHER MATTERS

The following table summarizes the fees of Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, billed to us for each of the last two fiscal years for audit services and billed to us in each of the last two fiscal years for other services:

Fee Category	2021	2020
Audit Fees	\$ 1,295,990	\$ 524,202
Audit Related Fees	1,124,663	_
Tax Fees	_	_
All Other Fees	_	7,560
Total Fees	\$ 2,420,653	\$ 531,762

Audit Fees

Audit fees for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 include fees for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements and for reviews of our financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. Audit fees for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 include fees for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements.

Audit Related Fees

Audit related fees for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 include fees for professional services provided in connection with our initial public offering incurred during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, including comfort letters, consents, and review of documents filed with the SEC and with our Registration Statement on Form S-8.

All Other Fees

All other fees for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 include fees for advisory services performed prior to the engagement of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our auditors.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy and Procedures

The Audit Committee has adopted a policy (the "Pre-Approval Policy") that sets forth the procedures and conditions pursuant to which audit and non-audit services proposed to be performed by the independent auditor may be preapproved. The Pre-Approval Policy generally provides that we will not engage Deloitte & Touche LLP to render any audit, audit-related, tax or permissible non-audit service unless the service is either (i) explicitly approved by the Audit Committee ("specific pre-approval") or (ii) entered into pursuant to the pre-approval policies and procedures described in the Pre-Approval Policy ("general pre-approval"). Unless a type of service to be provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP has received general pre-approval under the Pre-Approval Policy, it requires specific pre-approval by the Audit Committee or by a designated member of the Audit Committee to whom the committee has delegated the authority to grant pre-approvals. Any proposed services exceeding pre-approved cost levels or budgeted amounts will also require specific pre-approval. For both types of pre-approval, the Audit Committee will consider whether such services are consistent with the SEC's rules on auditor independence. The Audit Committee will also consider whether the independent auditor is best positioned to provide the most effective and efficient service, for reasons such as its familiarity with the Company's business, people, culture, accounting systems, risk profile and other factors, and whether the service might enhance the Company's ability to manage or control risk or improve audit quality. All such factors will be considered as a whole, and no one factor should necessarily be determinative. The Audit Committee may, on a periodic basis, review and generally pre-approve the services (and related fee levels or budgeted amounts) that may be provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP without first obtaining specific pre-approval from the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may revise the list of general pre-approved services from time to time, based on subsequent determinations. The Audit Committee pre-approved all services performed since the pre-approval policy was adopted.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table identifies our current executive officers:

Name	Age	Position
David Steinberg (1)	52	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Christopher Greiner (2)	46	Chief Financial Officer
Steven Gerber (3)	52	President and Chief Operating Officer

⁽¹⁾ See biography on page 9 of this proxy statement.

⁽²⁾ Christopher Greiner has been the Chief Financial Officer of Zeta since 2020. He has over 20 years of proven success in the technology industry. Prior to joining Zeta, Mr. Greiner served as Chief Financial Officer of LivePerson Inc., an AI-powered conversational cloud provider, from 2018 through March 2020 and before that spent five years at Inovalon, a cloud-based healthcare and life sciences analytics company, first as Chief Product and Operations Officer and then as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Greiner also held roles of increasing executive responsibility at IBM from 1999 until 2012 and Computer Sciences Corporation ("CSC") from 2012 to 2013. He holds a BBA in Finance and Economics from Baylor University.

⁽³⁾ Steven Gerber has been the President and Chief Operating Officer of Zeta since 2009. Mr. Gerber oversees the day-to-day management of the Company, including product development, business development, customer success and operations. He has more than 20 years of experience in data-driven digital technology. Previously, Mr. Gerber was a Senior Vice President at Tranzact LLC and held management positions at Bain & Company and Digitas LLC. He holds a BA from Northwestern University and an MBA from Columbia University.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

General

Our Board of Directors has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, a Code of Conduct, and charters for our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, Audit Committee and Compensation Committee to assist the Board in the exercise of its responsibilities and to serve as a framework for the effective governance of the Company. You can access our current committee charters, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, and our Code of Conduct in the "Corporate Governance" section of the "Investors Relations" page of our website located at www.investors.zetaglobal.com, or by writing to our Secretary at our offices at 3 Park Ave, 33rd Floor, New York, NY 10016.

Board Composition

Our Board of Directors currently consists of six members: David Steinberg, Jené Elzie, William Landman, Robert Niehaus, William Royan and John Sculley. Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaws provide that the authorized number of directors may be changed only by resolution of the Board of Directors. Prior to the Sunset Date, directors may be removed with or without cause only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of our common stock. After the Sunset Date, directors may be removed only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of Zeta's Common Stock.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors has determined that each of Jené Elzie, William Landman, Robert Niehaus, William Royan and John Sculley qualifies as "independent" in accordance with the listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"). In making these determinations, our Board of Directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and us with regard to each director's business and personal activities and relationships as they may relate to us and our management. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Executive Sessions

Our non-management directors meet in executive session without management directors or other members of management present on a regularly scheduled basis. We also hold an executive session including only independent directors at least once per year.

Director Candidates

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for searching for qualified director candidates for election to the Board and filling vacancies on the Board. To facilitate the search process, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may solicit current directors and executives of the Company for the names of potentially qualified candidates or ask directors and executives to pursue their own business contacts for the names of potentially qualified candidates. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may also consult with outside advisors or retain search firms to assist in the search for qualified candidates, or consider director candidates recommended by our stockholders. Once potential candidates are identified, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee reviews the backgrounds of those candidates, evaluates candidates' independence from the Company and potential conflicts of interest and determines if candidates meet the qualifications desired by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for candidates for election as a director.

In evaluating the suitability of individual candidates (both new candidates and current Board members), the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, in recommending candidates for election, and the Board, in approving (and, in the case of vacancies, appointing) such candidates, may take into account many factors, including: personal and professional integrity, strong ethics and values; experience in corporate management, such as serving as an officer or former officer of a publicly held company; experience as a board member or executive officer of another publicly held company; professional and academic experience relevant to the Company's industry; leadership skills; experience in finance and accounting and/or executive compensation practices; whether the candidate has the time required for preparation, participation and attendance at Board meetings and committee

meetings, if applicable; and geographic background, gender, age and ethnicity. The Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee and the Board are committed to actively seeking out highly qualified women and individuals from minority groups to include in the pool from which new Board candidates are chosen. The Board evaluates each individual in the context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of assembling a group that can best perpetuate the success of the Company's business. In addition, the Board will consider whether there are potential conflicts of interest with the candidate's other personal and professional pursuits.

Stockholders may recommend individuals to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee for consideration as potential director candidates by submitting the names of the recommended individuals, together with appropriate biographical information and background materials, to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, c/o Secretary, Zeta Global Holdings Corp., 3 Park Ave, 33rd Floor, New York, NY 10016. In the event there is a vacancy, and assuming that appropriate biographical and background material has been provided on a timely basis, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will evaluate stockholder-recommended candidates by following substantially the same process, and applying substantially the same criteria, as it follows for candidates submitted by others.

Communications from Stockholders

The Board will give appropriate attention to written communications that are submitted by stockholders, and will respond if and as appropriate. Our Secretary is primarily responsible for monitoring communications from stockholders and for providing copies or summaries to the directors as he considers appropriate.

Communications are forwarded to all directors if they relate to important substantive matters and include suggestions or comments that our Secretary and Chairman of the Board consider to be important for the directors to know. In general, communications relating to corporate governance and long-term corporate strategy are more likely to be forwarded than communications relating to ordinary business affairs, personal grievances and matters as to which we tend to receive repetitive or duplicative communications. Stockholders who wish to send communications on any topic to the Chairman of the Board, the independent or non-management directors, or the Board as a whole, should address such communications to the applicable party or parties in writing: c/o Secretary, Zeta Global Holdings Corp., 3 Park Ave, 33rd Floor, New York, NY 10016.

Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight

Our Amended and Restated Bylaws and Corporate Governance Guidelines provide our Board of Directors with flexibility to combine or separate the positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in accordance with its determination that utilizing one or the other structure would be in the best interests of our Company. The Company's current Board leadership structure comprises a combined Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer as well as highly qualified, active independent directors. Our Board exercises its judgment in combining or separating the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer as it deems appropriate in light of prevailing circumstances. The Board will continue to exercise its judgment on an ongoing basis to determine the optimal Board leadership structure that the Board believes will provide effective leadership, oversight and direction, while optimizing the functioning of both the Board and management and facilitating effective communication between the two. The Board has concluded that the current structure provides a well-functioning and effective balance between strong Company leadership and appropriate safeguards and oversight by independent directors.

Risk assessment and oversight are an integral part of our governance and management processes. Our Board of Directors encourages management to promote a culture that incorporates risk management into our corporate strategy and day-to-day business operations. Management discusses strategic and operational risks at regular management meetings and conducts specific strategic planning and review sessions during the year that include a focused discussion and analysis of the risks facing us. Throughout the year, senior management reviews these risks with the Board at regular Board meetings as part of management presentations that focus on particular business functions, operations or strategies, and presents the steps taken by management to mitigate or eliminate such risks.

Our Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing our risk management process. Our Board of Directors focuses on our general risk management strategy, the most significant risks facing us, and oversees the implementation of risk mitigation strategies by management and for overseeing management of regulatory risks. Our Audit Committee is responsible for discussing our policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management, including guidelines

and policies to govern the process by which our exposure to risk is handled, and for overseeing financial and cybersecurity risks. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee manages risks associated with the independence of our Board of Directors and potential conflicts of interest. Our Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing the management of risks relating to the Company's executive compensation plans and arrangements. The Board does not believe that its role in the oversight of our risks affects the Board's leadership structure.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have a written Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, and agents and representatives. We have posted a current copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on our website, www.investors.zetaglobal.com, in the "Governance Documents" section under "Corporate Governance." The nominating and corporate governance committee of our board of directors will be responsible for overseeing our code of business conduct and ethics and any waivers applicable to any director, executive officer or employee. We intend to disclose any future amendments to certain provisions of our code of business conduct and ethics, or waivers of such provisions applicable to our directors, officers and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions, and agents and representatives, on our website identified above or in public filings within four business days. In addition, we intend to post on our website all disclosures that are required by law or the rules of the NYSE concerning any amendments to, or waivers from, any provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Anti-Hedging Policy

Our Board of Directors has adopted an Insider Trading Compliance Policy, which applies to all of our directors, officers and employees. The policy prohibits our directors, officers and employees and any entities they control from purchasing financial instruments such as prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars, and exchange funds, or otherwise engaging in transactions that hedge or offset, or are designed to hedge or offset, any decrease in the market value of the Company's equity securities.

Attendance by Members of the Board of Directors at Meetings

There were 12 meetings of the Board of Directors during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, each director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) all meetings of the Board of Directors and (ii) all meetings of the committees on which the director served during the period in which he or she served as a director.

Under our Corporate Governance Guidelines, which are available on our website at www.investors.zetaglobal.com, a director is expected to spend the time and effort necessary to properly discharge his or her responsibilities. Accordingly, a director is expected to regularly prepare for and attend meetings of the Board and all committees on which the director sits (including separate meetings of the independent directors), with the understanding that, on occasion, a director may be unable to attend a meeting. A director who is unable to attend a meeting of the Board or a committee of the Board is expected to notify the Chairman of the Board or the Chair of the appropriate committee in advance of such meeting, and, whenever possible, participate in such meeting via teleconference in the case of an in-person meeting. We do not maintain a formal policy regarding director attendance at the Annual Meeting; however, it is expected that absent compelling circumstances directors will attend.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Our Board has established four standing committees—Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance—each of which operates under a written charter that has been approved by our Board.

The members of each of the Board committees and committee Chairpersons are set forth in the following chart.

Name	Audit	Compensation	Nominating and Corporate Governance
Robert Niehaus	Chairperson	Chairperson	
William Royan	X		
William Landman	X	X	X
John Sculley.			Chairperson
Jené Elzie		X	X

Audit Committee

Our audit committee oversees our accounting and financial reporting process. Among other matters, the audit committee:

- appoints our independent registered public accounting firm;
- evaluates the independent registered public accounting firm's qualifications, independence and performance;
- determines the engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm;
- reviews and approves the scope of the annual audit and pre-approves the audit and non-audit fees and services;
- reviews and approves all related party transactions on an ongoing basis;
- establishes procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of any complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters;
- discusses with management and the independent registered public accounting firm the results of the annual audit and the review of our quarterly financial statements;
- approves the retention of the independent registered public accounting firm to perform any proposed permissible non-audit services;
- discusses on a periodic basis, and as appropriate, with management, the Company's policies and procedures with respect to risk assessment and risk management;
- is responsible for reviewing our financial statements and our management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations to be included in our annual and quarterly reports to be filed with the SEC;
- investigates any reports received through the ethics helpline and reports to the board of directors periodically with respect to any information received through the ethics helpline and any related investigations; and
- reviews the audit committee charter and the audit committee's performance on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee charter is available on our website at www.investors.zetaglobal.com. Our audit committee consists of Robert Niehaus, William Royan and William Landman. Our board of directors has determined that all

members are independent under the Listing Rules and Rule 10A-3(b)(1) of the Exchange Act. The chair of our audit committee is Robert Niehaus. Our board of directors has determined that each member is an "audit committee financial expert" as such term is currently defined in Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. Our board of directors has also determined that each member of our audit committee can read and understand fundamental consolidated financial statements, in accordance with applicable requirements.

The Audit Committee met three times in 2021.

Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities relating to the compensation of our executive officers. In fulfilling its purpose, our Compensation Committee has the following principal duties:

- reviewing and approving or recommending corporate goals and objectives relevant to compensation of
 our executive officers (other than our Chief Executive Officer), evaluating the performance of these
 officers in light of those goals and objectives and approving the compensation of these officers based
 on such evaluations;
- reviewing and approving or making recommendations to our board of directors regarding the issuance
 of stock options and other awards under our stock plans to our executive officers (other than our Chief
 Executive Officer);
- reviewing the performance of our Chief Executive Officer and making recommendations to our board
 of directors with respect to his compensation, and our board of directors retains the authority to make
 compensation decisions relative to our Chief Executive Officer; and
- reviewing and evaluating, on an annual basis, the compensation committee charter and the Compensation Committee's performance

The Compensation Committee generally considers the Chief Executive Officer's recommendations when making decisions regarding the compensation of non-employee directors and executive officers (other than the Chief Executive Officer). Pursuant to the Compensation Committee's charter, which is available on our website at www.investors.zetaglobal.com, the Compensation Committee has the authority to retain or obtain the advice of compensation consultants, legal counsel and other advisors to assist in carrying out its responsibilities.

The Compensation Committee may delegate its authority under its charter to one or more subcommittees as it deems appropriate from time to time. The Compensation Committee may also delegate to an executive officer the authority to grant equity awards to certain employees and consultants, as further described in its charter and subject to the terms of our equity plans.

Our Compensation Committee consists of Robert Niehaus, Jené Elzie and William Landman. The chair of our compensation committee is Robert Niehaus. Our board of directors has determined that all members are independent under NYSE's heightened independence standards for members of a compensation committee and as a "non-employee director" as defined in Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act.

The Compensation Committee met twice in 2021.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee's responsibilities include:

- making recommendations to our board of directors regarding candidates for directorships and the size and composition of our board of directors;
- overseeing our corporate governance policies and making recommendations to our board of directors concerning governance matters;

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter is available on our website at www.investors.zetaglobal.com. Our nominating and corporate governance committee consists of John Sculley, Jené Elzie, and William Landman. Our board of directors has determined that all members are independent under the Listing Rules. The chair of our nominating and corporate governance committee is John Sculley. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has the authority to consult with outside advisors or retain search firms to assist in the search for qualified candidates, or consider director candidates recommended by our stockholders.

Given the timing of our IPO, there were no meetings of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in 2021.

EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

This section discusses the material components of the executive compensation program for our executive officers who are named in the "2021 Summary Compensation Table" below. In 2021, our "named executive officers" and their positions were as follows:

- David Steinberg, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer;
- Christopher Greiner, Chief Financial Officer; and
- Steven Gerber, President and Chief Operating Officer.

2021 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of our named executive officers for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Ś	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)(4)	Stock Awards (\$)(1)	Incen Comp	Equity tive Plan ensation (5)(2)	Comp	Other tensation (S)(3)	Total (\$)
David Steinberg	2021	\$	750,000	\$ 675,000	\$213,985,907	\$	750,000	\$	293,550	\$216,454,457
Chairman and Chief Executive										
Officer	2020	\$	693,750	_	\$7,145,417	\$	578,125	\$	311,075	\$8,728,367
Christopher Greiner	2021	\$	500,000	\$ 250,000	\$22,822,319	\$	500,000	\$	59,350	\$24,131,669
Chief Financial Officer	2020	\$	400,000	_	\$7,656,667	\$	450,000	\$	4,275	\$8,510,942
Steven Gerber	2021	\$	550,000	\$ 600,000	\$34,673,319	\$	500,000	\$	4,350	\$36,327,669
President and Chief Operating										
Officer	2020	\$	495,000	_	\$2,327,160	\$	291,205	\$	4,275	\$3,117,640

- (1) Amounts reflect the full grant-date fair value of restricted stock awards and performance-based restricted stock units granted during 2021 computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718, rather than the amounts paid to or realized by the named individual. For performance-based restricted stock units, the amounts were calculated based on the probable outcome of the performance condition as of the grant date. The following are the values of the performance-based restricted stock units as of the grant date assuming attainment of the maximum level of performance: Mr. Steinberg (\$4,800,000), Mr. Greiner (\$2,400,000) and Mr. Gerber (\$2,400,000). Amounts shown for Mr. Steinberg (\$204,208,407), Mr. Greiner (\$21,151,069) and Mr. Gerber (\$33,002,069) also reflect the incremental fair value attributable to the modification of outstanding equity awards during 2021 due to the change in the vesting schedule. See the section entitled "Equity Compensation" for additional information on this modification. We provide information regarding the assumptions used to calculate the value of all equity awards made to executive officers in Note 1 and Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements included in our 2021 annual report on Form 10-K.
- (2) Amounts reflect cash bonuses earned under our annual performance-based bonus programs for 2021. See "2021 Bonuses" below for additional information.
- (3) Amount shown for Mr. Steinberg includes (i) the cost of maintaining an apartment for corporate purposes and Mr. Steinberg's and other employees' use while on company business (\$288,000 for 2021 and \$305,500 for 2020), and (ii) the cost of maintaining a temporary remote office for use by Mr. Steinberg and other employees. Amount shown for Mr. Greiner includes certain club membership fees (\$55,000) and matching contributions under our 401(k) plan. Amount shown for Mr. Gerber reflects matching contributions under our 401(k) plan.
- (4) Amounts shown reflect one-time cash bonuses paid in connection with our initial public offering in 2021 and discretionary bonuses based on performance.

Hypothetical 2021 Summary Compensation Table

Prior to our IPO, our restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards generally did not vest until a change in control, which did not include an initial public offering. Since the vesting of these awards was contingent upon the change of control event, which was not considered probable until it occurs, we did not record any stock-based compensation for such awards prior to the IPO. In connection with our IPO, the board of directors approved a modification in the vesting terms of all outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock units awards, including those held by our named executive officers, so that, after giving effect to any vesting that occurred in connection with the IPO, such outstanding awards would be subject to a standard time-based vesting schedule following the IPO. This change to the vesting schedule of all outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards resulted in significant compensation expense, which, for our named executive officers, is reported in the "Stock Awards" column of the 2021 Summary Compensation Table above. As a result, the amounts shown in the "Stock Awards" column above do not reflect the amounts actually realized by the named executive officers with respect to their 2021 restricted stock and performance-based restricted stock unit awards. The following table is a hypothetical illustration of what the

2021 Summary Compensation Table would have disclosed if the compensation expense associated with the modification of the named executive officers' restricted stock awards were not included, but is not a substitute for the required Summary Compensation Table above.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total (\$)
David Steinberg Chairman and Chief Executive	2021	\$ 750,000	\$ 675,000	\$9,777,500	\$ 750,000	\$ 293,550	\$12,246,050
Officer	2020	\$ 693,750	_	\$7,145,417	\$ 578,125	\$ 311,075	\$8,728,367
Christopher Greiner	2021	\$ 500,000	\$ 250,000	\$1,671,250	\$ 500,000	\$ 59,350	\$2,980,600
Chief Financial Officer	2020	\$ 400,000	_	\$7,656,667	\$ 450,000	\$ 4,275	\$8,510,942
Steven Gerber President and Chief Operating	2021	\$ 550,000	\$ 600,000	\$1,671,250	\$ 500,000	\$ 4,350	\$3,325,600
Officer	2020	\$ 495,000	_	\$2,327,160	\$ 291,205	\$ 4,275	\$3,117,640

2021 Salaries

The named executive officers receive a base salary to compensate them for services rendered to our company. The base salary payable to each named executive officer is intended to provide a fixed component of compensation reflecting the executive's skill set, experience, role and responsibilities. The 2021 annual base salaries for our named executives officers were:

Name	2021 Annual Base Salary		
David Steinberg	\$	750,000	
Christopher Greiner	\$	500,000	
Steven Gerber	\$	550,000	

2021 Bonuses

We provide annual bonuses designed to motivate and reward our executives, including our named executive officers, for achievements relative to certain company performance metrics for the year. For 2021, the target bonus opportunity for Mr. Steinberg, Mr. Gerber and Mr. Greiner, expressed as a percentage of base salary was 100%, 91% and 100%, respectively.

Our board determines the bonus amounts for our executives, including our named executive officers, based on company performance against pre-established objectives and retains discretion to allow for individual adjustments based on such factors as it deems appropriate. Our corporate performance objectives for 2021 generally related to successful completion of our initial public offering, certain financial and operational performance metrics and the company's actual performance as compared against 2021 budget. In assessing our named executive officers' 2021 bonuses, the board also considered extraordinary individual and company performance for the year.

The annual bonuses awarded to our named executive officers for 2021 performance are set forth above in the 2021 Summary Compensation Table in the column entitled "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation."

Pursuant to their employment agreements, the Mr. Steinberg and Mr. Gerber were entitled to IPO cash bonuses equal to \$500,000 and \$200,000, respectively. These bonuses were paid in 2021.

Equity Compensation

The following table sets forth the restricted stock awards and performance-based restricted stock units granted to our named executive officers during 2021 as the long-term incentive component of our compensation program.

	Restricted Stock	Target # of Performance- Based Restricted
Named Executive Officer	Awards (1)	Stock Units (2)
David Steinberg	7,874,163	400,000
Steven Gerber	275,000	200,000
Christopher Greiner	199,157	200,000

⁽¹⁾ The restricted stock awards generally vest as to 25% of the shares on the 12-month anniversary of the grant date and the remaining 75% of the shares will vest quarterly thereafter over three years.

Prior to our IPO, the restricted stock awards granted to our named executive officers did not vest until the occurrence of a change in control, with 25% of the shares immediately vesting upon a change in control and the remaining 75% of the shares vesting in equal quarterly installments over the remaining portion of a five (5) year period measured from the original date of grant. Outstanding restricted stock awards held by our named executive officers were amended in connection with our IPO so that the named executive officers vested in a portion of such awards in connection with our IPO and that the remaining portion of such awards would continue vesting following the IPO. For additional information regarding the vesting of outstanding restricted stock awards held by our named executive officers following our IPO see "Executive Compensation Arrangements—Employment Agreement with Mr. Steinberg" and "—Employment Agreements with Mr. Gerber and Mr. Greiner" below.

In connection with our IPO, we adopted a 2021 Incentive Award Plan, referred to below as the 2021 Plan, in order to facilitate the grant of cash and equity incentives to directors, employees (including our named executive officers) and consultants of our company and certain of our affiliates and to enable our company and certain of our affiliates to obtain and retain services of these individuals, which is essential to our long-term success. The 2021 Plan was effective as of the day prior to the first public trading date of our Class A common stock.

Other Elements of Compensation

Retirement Plans

We currently maintain a 401(k) retirement savings plan for our employees, including our named executive officers, who satisfy certain eligibility requirements. Our named executive officers are eligible to participate in the 401(k) plan on the same terms as other full-time employees. The Internal Revenue Code allows eligible employees to defer a portion of their compensation, within prescribed limits, on a pre-tax basis through contributions to the 401(k) plan. Currently, we match 25% of contributions made by participants in the 401(k) plan up to 6% of the employee contributions, and these matching contributions vest over a period of four years. We believe that providing a vehicle for tax-deferred retirement savings though our 401(k) plan, and making matching contributions, adds to the overall desirability of our executive compensation package and further incentivizes our employees, including our named executive officers, in accordance with our compensation policies.

Employee Benefits and Perquisites

All of our full-time employees, including our named executive officers, are eligible to participate in our health and welfare plans, including medical, dental and vision benefits; medical and dependent care flexible spending accounts; short-term and long-term disability insurance; and life insurance.

⁽²⁾ The performance-based restricted stock units ("PSUs") will be earned between 0% and 200% of target based upon the volume-weighted average closing price per share of our Class A Common Stock during the final 20 consecutive trading days of each fiscal quarter beginning with the second fiscal quarter of 2022 and ending with, and including, the fourth fiscal quarter of 2025. To the extent earned, the PSUs vest in three equal annual installments, with the first installment vesting on the date the Company determines the number of PSUs that are eligible to vest for such quarter, and the second and third installments vesting on the first and second anniversaries of such determination date. In the event of the executive's termination by the company without cause or due to the executive's death or disability, or resignation by the executive for good reason, any earned PSUs will vest on the date of such termination or resignation and, in connection with a termination without cause or resignation for good reason only, those PSUs otherwise eligible to be earned for the quarter in which such termination or resignation occurs will remain outstanding and eligible to vest on the first determination date that occurs following such termination or resignation based on actual performance for such quarter. The unearned portion of the PSUs are expected to expire on January 1, 2026.

In addition, for 2021 we provided Mr. Steinberg and Mr. Greiner with certain limited executive perquisites. For Mr. Steinberg these included expenses associated with a company-provided corporate apartment and a temporary remote office used primarily for business purposes. For Mr. Greiner these included certain club membership fees. The amounts paid pursuant to these arrangements for 2021 are included in the "All Other Compensation" column of the 2021 Summary Compensation Table above.

We believe the perquisites and other benefits described above are necessary and appropriate to provide a competitive compensation package to our named executive officers.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table summarizes the number of shares of Class A common stock underlying outstanding equity incentive plan awards for each named executive officer as of December 31, 2021.

	Stock Awards						
Name	Grant Date	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#)(1)	Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (\$)(2)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#)(1)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$)(2)	Vesting Schedule	
David Steinberg	8/18/2021			100,000	\$842,000	(3)	
	8/18/2021	530,000	\$4,462,600			(4)	
	6/14/2021	700,000	5,894,000			(5)	
	12/30/2011						
	- 9/1/2020	20,438,758	172,094,342			(6)	
Steven Gerber	8/18/2021			50,000	421,000	(3)	
	8/18/2021	75,000	631,500			(4)	
	6/14/2021	100,000	842,000			(4)	
	2/12/2013	2 < 2 4 4 5 5	20 -00 -02			(-)	
	- 2/25/2021	3,634,157	30,599,602		121 000	(7)	
Christopher Greiner	8/18/2021		624 5 00	50,000	421,000	(3)	
	8/18/2021	75,000	631,500			(4)	
	6/14/2021	100,000	842,000			(4)	
	2/17/2020	2 200 002	20 122 511			(7)	
	- 2/1/2021	2,389,993	20,123,741			(7)	

⁽¹⁾ Amounts shown represent restricted stock awards and PSUs granted to the named executive officer. Certain outstanding awards have been transferred other than for value by the named executive officer to trusts or other entities.

⁽²⁾ Amount shown is based on a price per share of \$8.42, which was the closing price of our Class A common stock as of December 31, 2021.

⁽³⁾ Represents PSUs at the threshold level of performance, which is 25% of target. PSUs will be earned between 0% and 200% of target based upon the volume-weighted average closing price per share of our Class A Common Stock during the final 20 consecutive trading days of each fiscal quarter beginning with the second fiscal quarter of 2022 and ending with, and including, the fourth fiscal quarter of 2025. To the extent earned, the PSUs vest in three equal annual installments, with the first installment vesting on the date the Company determines the number of PSUs that are eligible to vest for such quarter, and the second and third installments vesting on the first and second anniversaries of such determination date. The PSUs are subject to accelerated vesting in connection with certain qualifying terminations of employment. See the section entitled "Equity Compensation" above for additional information. The unearned portion of the PSUs are expected to expire on January 1, 2026.

⁽⁴⁾ Unvested shares of Class A common stock will vest as to 25% of the shares on the 12-month anniversary of the grant date and the remaining 75% of the shares will vest quarterly thereafter over three years. The restricted shares are subject to accelerated vesting in connection with certain qualifying terminations of employment. See the section entitled "Executive Compensation Arrangements— Employment Agreements with Mr. Gerber and Mr. Greiner" below for additional information.

- (5) Unvested shares of Class B common stock will vest as to 25% of the shares on the 12-month anniversary of the grant date and the remaining 75% of the shares will vest quarterly thereafter over three years. The restricted shares are subject to accelerated vesting in connection with certain qualifying terminations of employment. See the section entitled "Executive Compensation Arrangements—Employment Agreement with Mr. Steinberg" below for additional information.
- (6) Unvested shares of Class B common stock will vest in 16 equal quarterly installments from September 14, 2022 through June 14, 2026.
- (7) Unvested shares of Class A common stock will vest in 16 equal quarterly installments from September 14, 2022 through June 14, 2026.

Executive Compensation Arrangements

Employment Agreement with Mr. Steinberg

In connection with our IPO, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Steinberg (the "Steinberg Agreement"). The Steinberg Agreement has an initial two year term commencing on the effective date of our IPO that will automatically renew for successive one year periods thereafter unless we or Mr. Steinberg do not renew the agreement. The Steinberg Agreement entitles Mr. Steinberg to an annual base salary of \$750,000 and, a target annual bonus equal to 100% of his annual base salary. Mr. Steinberg is also entitled to corporate housing while he is in New York City.

Mr. Steinberg's equity awards granted to him prior to our IPO (the "Pre-IPO Awards") were amended in connection with our IPO, the remaining shares vest quarterly over a five year period beginning on the date of our IPO, except that none of the Pre-IPO Awards vest prior to the one year anniversary of our IPO pursuant to this amendment. In addition, in the event we complete additional secondary offerings of our common stock, the Pre-IPO Awards will vest, subject to the Board's approval, in an amount equal to the number of such unvested Pre-IPO Awards held by Mr. Steinberg on the date of the applicable secondary offering, multiplied by the greater of (a) 25% and (b) a percentage equal to (i) the number of shares sold in the secondary offering divided by (ii) the number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of the effective date of our IPO (as adjusted for stock splits, reverse stock splits and similar events). In the event we have a change in control, the Pre-IPO Awards and any other equity awards held by Mr. Steinberg will vest in full.

In the event Mr. Steinberg's employment is terminated without Cause, due to his disability, or Mr. Steinberg resigns for Good Reason (as defined below), he will be entitled to, subject to executing a release of claims, an amount equal to his annual base salary and annual target bonus generally payable over 12 months following his termination, a lump sum payment equal to a pro-rated annual target bonus, 12-months of the employer portion of the premium costs for COBRA coverage, full vesting of his outstanding time-based equity awards and vesting of his outstanding performance-based equity awards to the extent the applicable performance conditions are achieved within 12 months of Mr. Steinberg's termination. In the event we have a change in control and during the 24-month period following the change of control Mr. Steinberg is terminated without Cause or resigns for Good Reason, Mr. Steinberg will be entitled to, subject to executing a release of claims and in lieu of any other severance, an amount equal to two times his annual base salary and annual target bonus paid in a lump sum, a lump sum payment equal to a pro-rated annual target bonus, 18-months of the employer portion of the premium costs for COBRA coverage, full vesting of his outstanding time-based equity awards and vesting of his outstanding performance-based equity awards to the extent the applicable performance conditions are achieved within 12 months of Mr. Steinberg's termination. If Mr. Steinberg dies, his estate is entitled to full vesting of his outstanding time-based equity awards and vesting of his outstanding performance-based awards to the extent the applicable performance conditions are achieved within 12 months of his death. In the event Mr. Steinberg terminates employment for any reason other than Cause, he is entitled to be included in the slate for re-election to the Board at every shareholder meeting at which Mr. Steinberg's term as a member of the Board would otherwise expire, to the extent he owns, directly or directly, at least 5% of our shares. In the event Mr. Steinberg is terminated for Cause and agrees to extend his non-solicitation agreement until the fifth anniversary of the date of our IPO, the Pre-IPO Awards will continue to vest during such extended nonsolicitation period.

For purposes of the Steinberg Agreement, "Cause" generally means his conviction of or plea of guilty or no-contest to a felony resulting from fraudulent acts against us that is reasonably likely to result in material harm to us. A "without Cause" termination under the Steinberg Agreement also includes the non-renewal of the Steinberg Agreement by us or due to our inability to enter into a mutually acceptable successor employment agreement with Mr. Steinberg at the end of the then applicable term. For purposes of the Steinberg Agreement, "Good Reason" generally means, without his written consent, a reduction in his base salary or target annual bonus, a diminution of

his duties, responsibilities, powers or authorities, the requirement that his principal office location is moved more than 50 miles from the then office location, a material breach by us of the Steinberg Agreement or any other written agreement between us and Mr. Steinberg and a failure of a successor to assume the Steinberg Agreement in the event we incur a change in control.

Mr. Steinberg is also subject to standard confidentiality and intellectual property provisions, as well as a 12-month non-solicitation of customers, vendors, suppliers, business development partners and employees.

Employment Agreements with Mr. Gerber and Mr. Greiner

In connection with the IPO, we entered into an employment agreement with each of Mr. Gerber and Mr. Greiner. The employment agreements have an initial two year term commencing on the effective date of our IPO that will automatically renew for successive one year periods thereafter unless either party elects to not renew the employment agreement. Mr. Gerber's employment agreement entitles him to an annual base salary of \$550,000 and, beginning in 2022, a target annual bonus equal to 91% of his annual base salary. Mr. Greiner's employment agreement entitles him to an annual base salary of \$500,000 and, beginning in 2022, a target annual bonus equal to 100% of his annual base salary.

The equity awards granted to Messrs. Gerber and Greiner prior to our IPO were amended in connection with our IPO so that, after giving effect to the vesting of awards in connection with our IPO, the remaining shares will vest quarterly over a five year period beginning on the date of our IPO, except that none of these equity awards will be scheduled to vest prior to the one year anniversary of our IPO pursuant to this amendment. In addition, in the event we complete additional secondary offerings of our common stock, these equity awards will vest, subject to the Board's approval, in an amount equal to the number of such unvested equity awards on the date of the applicable secondary offering, multiplied by a percentage equal to (i) the number of shares sold in the secondary offering divided by (ii) the number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of the effective date of our IPO (as adjusted for stock splits, reverse stock splits and similar events).

Each employment agreement provides that in the event that either Mr. Gerber's or Mr. Greiner's employment is terminated without Cause or he resigns for Good Reason (as defined below), he will be entitled to, subject to executing a release of claims and in lieu of any other severance, an amount equal to 1.5 times his annual base salary and annual target bonus generally payable over 18 months following his termination, a lump sum payment equal to a pro-rated annual target bonus, 18 months of the employer portion of the premium costs for COBRA coverage, full vesting of his outstanding time-based equity awards and vesting of his outstanding performance-based equity awards to the extent the applicable performance conditions are achieved within 12 months of termination. Each employment agreement also provides that in the event that either Mr. Gerber's or Mr. Greiner's employment is terminated by the company due to his disability, he will be entitled to an amount equal to one half of his annual base salary and annual target bonus generally payable over six months following his termination, full vesting of his outstanding time-based equity awards and vesting of his outstanding performance-based equity awards to the extent the applicable performance conditions are achieved within 12 months of termination. If either Mr. Gerber or Mr. Greiner dies, his estate will be entitled to full vesting of his outstanding time-based equity awards and vesting of his outstanding performance-based awards to the extent the applicable performance conditions are achieved within 12 months of his death.

For purposes of the employment agreements, "Cause" generally means his conviction of or plea of guilty or nocontest to a felony that is reasonably likely to adversely and significantly affect our business, his willful and repeated failure or refusal to perform reasonably assigned duties which is materially harmful to the business, willful misconduct which is materially harmful to the business, or a material breach of the employment agreement or fiduciary duty, which is likely to adversely and significantly affect the business. For purposes of the employment agreement, "Good Reason" generally means, without his written consent, a reduction in his base salary or target annual bonus, a material diminution of his duties, responsibilities, powers or authorities, the requirement that his principal office location is moved more than 50 miles from the then office location, a material breach by us of the employment agreement or any other written agreement between us and a failure of a successor to assume the employment agreement in the event we incur a change in control.

Director Compensation

Historically, we did not pay cash compensation to any of our non-employee directors for service on our board of directors, and no cash or equity compensation was paid during 2021 to our non-employee directors for service on our board prior to our initial public offering. Following her appointment as a non-employee director in June 2021, Jené Elzie received the following compensation for her service on our board of directors during the remainder of 2021: (i) \$150,000 in shares of restricted stock on July 1, 2021 and (ii) the prorated amount of an annual cash retainer of \$100,000. The restricted shares granted to Ms. Elzie vests as to 25% of the shares on the first anniversary of the grant date and as to 25% of the shares on each October 1, January 1 and April 1 thereafter, such that the restricted stock award will be fully vested 21 months from the grant date. In 2022, our board of directors approved, effective January 1, 2022, a director compensation program pursuant to which each non-employee director is eligible for (i) an annual equity award of \$150,000 in shares of restricted stock on July 1 of each year, subject to the director's continued service as a director through such date; and (ii) an annual cash retainer of \$100,000, payable in arrears in four equal quarterly installments, prorated for the portion of each calendar quarter actually served as a non-employee director. The restricted shares granted under the director compensation program will vest as to 25% of the shares on first anniversary of the date of grant and as to 25% of the shares on each October 1, January 1 and April 1 thereafter, subject to continued service as a non-employee director through each such vesting date and accelerated vesting upon a change in control. The director compensation program supersedes the prior compensation arrangement with Ms. Elzie.

2021 Director Compensation

The following table sets forth the compensation earned by our non-employee directors for their service on our board during 2021.

	Fees ea	arned or paid in					
Name	cash		Sto	Stock Awards(1)		Total (\$)	
Jené Elzie	\$	75,000	\$	150,000	\$	225,000	
Robert Niehaus							
William Royan				_			
William A. Landman		_				_	
John Sculley							

⁽¹⁾ Amounts reflect the full grant-date fair value of restricted stock awards granted during 2021 computed in accordance with ASC Topic 718, rather than the amounts paid to or realized by the named individual. We provide information regarding the assumptions used to calculate the value of all restricted stock awards made to our directors in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements included in our 2021 annual report on Form 10-K

The table below shows the aggregate numbers of unvested stock awards held as of December 31, 2021 by each non-employee director who was serving as of December 31, 2021. Certain outstanding awards have been transferred by the director to trusts or other entities.

Name	Unvested Restricted Shares Outstanding at Fiscal Year End			
Jené Elzie	18,774			
Robert Niehaus	597,953			
William Royan				
William Landman	1,914,818			
John Sculley	2,070,582			

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following sets forth the beneficial ownership of Zeta's Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock as of April 18, 2022 by:

- each person who is known to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock or Class B common stock;
- each of Zeta's current named executive officers and directors; and
- all current executive officers and directors of Zeta as a group.

The number of shares beneficially owned by each stockholder is determined under rules issued by the SEC. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which a person has sole or shared voting power or investment power. Applicable percentage ownership is based on 166,154,305 shares of Class A common stock and 36,856,095 shares of Class B common stock outstanding as of April 18, 2022. "Percentage of Total Voting Power" represents voting power with respect to all outstanding shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, as a single class, as of April 18, 2022. The holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to 10 votes per share, and holders of our Class A common stock are entitled to one vote per share. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of our common stock subject to options, warrants or other rights held by such person that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of April 18, 2022 are considered outstanding, although these shares are not considered outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise indicated, Zeta believes that all persons named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to the voting securities beneficially owned by them.

	Class A Common Stock		Class B Common Stock		% of Total
Beneficial Owner(1)	Number of Shares	%	Number of Shares	%	Voting Power†
5% or Greater Stockholders:					
Entities affiliated with Greenhill Capital					
Partners(2)	17,146,891	10.3%	_		3.2%
Entities affiliated with GPI Capital					
Gemini HoldCo LP(3)	16,237,054	9.8%	_		3.0%
CMS Platinum Fund, L.P.(4)	10,015,184	6.0%	_		1.9%
ACI Investment Partners, LLC(5)	1,305,000	*	29,364,665	79.7%	55.2%
Executive Officers and Directors:					
David A. Steinberg(6)	3,415,819	2.1%	36,856,095	100.0%	69.6%
Steven Gerber(7)	3,811,013	2.3%	_		*
Christopher Greiner(8)	2,687,138	1.6%	_		*
William Landman(9)	11,077,360	6.7%	_		2.1%
Robert Niehaus(10)	17,146,891	10.3%	_		3.2%
William Royan(11)	16,237,054	9.8%	_	_	3.0%
John Sculley(12)	3,380,328	2.0%	_		*
Jené Elzie(13)	18,774	*	_		*
All directors and executive officers as a					
group (8 individuals)	57,774,377	34.8%	36,856,095	100.0%	79.7%

^{*} Less than one percent.

[†] Percentage of total voting power represents voting power with respect to all shares of our Class A and Class B common stock, as a single class. The holders of our Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes per share, and holders of our Class A common stock are entitled to one vote per share.

⁽¹⁾ Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each of those listed in the table is 3 Park Avenue, 33rd Floor, New York, NY 10016.

⁽²⁾ Consists of: (i) 8,156,208 shares of Class A common stock held directly by Greenhill Capital Partners III, L.P., of which GCP Managing Partner III, L.P. ("Greenhill III GP") is the general partner; (ii) 1,597,626 shares of Class A common stock held directly by Greenhill Capital Partners (Cayman Islands) III, L.P., of which Greenhill III GP is the general partner; (iii) 3,401,659 shares of Class A common stock held directly by Greenhill Capital Partners (Employees) III, L.P., of which Greenhill III GP is the general partner; (iv) 1,473,280 shares of Class A common stock held directly by Greenhill Capital Partners (GHL) III, L.P., of which Greenhill III GP is the general partner; (v) 1,591,211 shares of Class A common stock held directly by GCP Capital Partners IV, L.P., of which GCP Managing Partner IV, L.P. ("Greenhill IV

- GP") is the general partner; and (vi) 29,976 shares of Class A common stock held directly by GCP Capital Partners (Cayman) IV, L.P., of which Greenhill IV GP is the general partner. Also includes 597,953 shares of restricted Class A common stock. The general partner of Greenhill III GP is GCP Managing Partner III GP, LLC, which has sole voting and investment power. Robert Niehaus, Frank Pottow, Boris Gutin and Cyrus Hormazdi are the members of the investment committee of GCP Capital Partners, LLC, the investment manager of each of the Greenhill shareholders, and share such powers. The general partner of Greenhill IV GP is GCP Managing Partner IV GP, LLC, which has sole voting and investment power. Robert Niehaus, Frank Pottow, Boris Gutin and Cyrus Hormazdi are the members of the investment committee of GCP Capital Partners, LLC, the investment manager of each of the Greenhill shareholders, and share such powers. Mr. Niehaus, a member of our board of directors, is a member of the investment committee of Greenhill Capital Partners, and may be deemed to share voting and investment power over the shares held by the entities associated with Greenhill Capital Partners. The principal business address of the entities mentioned in this footnote is 600 Lexington Ave., 31st Floor, New York, NY 10022.
- (3) Consists of: (i) 16,237,054 shares of Class A common stock held directly by GPI Capital Gemini HoldCo LP and (ii) 382,000 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by GPI Capital, L.P. GPI Capital, LLC ("GPI LLC") is (i) the sole member of GPI GP Limited, which is the general partner of GPI GP LP, which is the general partner of GPI Capital Gemini HoldCo LP and (ii) the general partner of GPI Capital, L.P. William T. Royan, Khai Ha and Aleksander Migon are the members of the Investment Committee of GPI LLC. Mr. Royan, a member of our board of directors, may be deemed to share voting and investment power over the shares held by the entities associated with GPI LLC. The principal business address of entities mentioned in this footnote is 1345 Avenue of the Americas, 32nd Floor, New York, NY 10105
- (4) Consists of 9,815,184 shares of Class A common stock and 200,000 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by CMS Platinum Fund, L.P., of which MSPS Platinum, Inc. ("CMS GP") is the general partner. Mr. Landman, a member of our board of directors, is the senior managing director of CMS GP and may be deemed to share voting and investment power over the shares held by CMS GP. The principal business address of CMS Platinum Fund, L.P. is 308 E. Lancaster Avenue, Suite 300, Wynnewood, PA 19096.
- (5) Consists of (i) 1,305,000 shares of restricted Class A common stock and (ii) 10,085,655 shares of Class B common stock and 19,279,010 shares of restricted Class B common stock, held by ACI Investment Partners, LLC, of which Mr. Steinberg, our Co-Founder and Chief Executive Officer is the managing member.
- (6) Consists of (i) 15,337 shares of Class B common stock held by CAIVIS Acquisition Corp. II, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of CAIVIS Investment Company V, LLC, of which Mr. Steinberg is the majority shareholder; (ii) 194,601 shares of Class B common stock held by Kica Investments LLC, of which Mr. Steinberg is managing member; (iii) 6,787,043 shares of Class B common stock and 95,819 shares of restricted Class B common stock held by IAC Investment Company IX, LLC, of which Mr. Steinberg is managing member; (iv) 211,356 shares of restricted Class A common stock held by Kristen Steinberg, Mr. Steinberg's spouse; (v) 1,895,318 shares of Class A common stock held by Kristin Kuehl, with whom Mr. Steinberg is party to a voting agreement; (vi) 4,145 shares of Class A common stock held directly by Mr. Steinberg and (vii) the shares described in footnote (5) above. Additionally, Mr. Steinberg is co-trustee of seven irrevocable family trusts (together the "Steinberg Family Trusts"), which collectively hold 336,624 shares of Class B common stock and 62,006 shares of restricted Class B common stock. Mr. Steinberg may be deemed to share beneficial ownership of the shares held of record by the Steinberg Family Trusts.
- (7) Consists of 3,811,013 shares of restricted Class A common stock held by the Evergreen Revocable Trust, for which Mr. Gerber serves as trustee and beneficiary.
- (8) Consists of 4,145 shares of Class A common stock and 2,682,993 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by Mr. Greiner.
- (9) Consists of (i) 5,997 shares of Class A common stock and 601,168 shares of restricted Class A common stock held by Beth Landman, Mr. Landman's spouse, (ii) 405,156 shares of Class A common stock held directly by CMS/CAIVIS Partners, of which Mr. Landman is a partner and may be deemed to share voting and investment power over the shares, (iii) 47,895 shares of Class A common stock held directly by Mainline Special Opportunities Fund, LP of which Mr. Landman is the managing member, (iv) 440,000 shares of restricted Class A common stock held by the 2019 Landman Family Trust, for which Mr. Landman's spouse is trustee, (v) 1,960 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by Mr. Landman and (vi) the shares described above in footnote (4). The principal business address of Mr. Landman and the entities identified in footnote (4) above is 308 Lancaster Ave., Ste. 300, Wynnewood, PA 19096.
- (10) Consists of shares described in footnote (2) above.
- (11) Consists of the shares described in footnote (3) above.
- (12) Consists of (i) 654,873 shares of Class A common stock and 1,035,291 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by The Bluedge Revocable Trust, for which Mr. Sculley serves as trustee and beneficiary and (ii) 654,873 shares of Class A common stock and 1,035,291 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by The Denim Revocable Trust, for which Mr. Sculley serves as co-trustee and may be deemed to share voting and investment power over such shares.
- (13) Consists of 18,774 shares of restricted Class A common stock held directly by Ms. Elzie.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16(A) REPORTS

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and the rules of the SEC require our directors, executive officers and persons who own more than 10% of our Common Stock to file reports of their ownership and changes in ownership of our Common Stock with the SEC. As a practical matter, we assist our directors and officers by monitoring transactions and completing and filing Section 16 reports on their behalf. Based solely on our review of the reports filed during 2021 and related written representations, we determined that no director, executive officer, or beneficial owner of more than 10% of our common stock failed to file a report on a timely basis during 2021, except for one Form 4 that was filed late by Mr. Niehaus on December 8, 2021 to report one transaction dated June 14, 2021.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Policies and Procedures for Related Person Transactions

Our board of directors has adopted a written related person transaction policy that sets forth the following policies and procedures for the review and approval or ratification of related person transactions. Under the policy, our legal team is primarily responsible for developing and implementing processes and procedures to obtain information regarding related persons with respect to potential related person transactions and then determining, based on the facts and circumstances, whether such potential related person transactions do, in fact, constitute related person transactions requiring compliance with the policy. If our legal team determines that a transaction or relationship is a related person transaction requiring compliance with the policy, our legal department is required to present to the Audit Committee all relevant facts and circumstances relating to the related person transaction. Our Audit Committee must review the relevant facts and circumstances of each related person transaction, including if the transaction is on terms comparable to those that could be obtained in arm's length dealings with an unrelated third party and the extent of the related person's interest in the transaction, take into account the conflicts of interest and corporate opportunity provisions of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, and either approve or disapprove the related person transaction. If advance Audit Committee approval of a related person transaction requiring the Audit Committee's approval is not feasible, then the transaction may be preliminarily entered into by management upon prior approval of the transaction by the chairperson of the Audit Committee subject to ratification of the transaction by the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee's next regularly scheduled meeting; provided, that if ratification is not forthcoming, management will make all reasonable efforts to cancel or annul the transaction. If a transaction was not initially recognized as a related person, then upon such recognition the transaction will be presented to the Audit Committee for ratification at the Audit Committee's next regularly scheduled meeting; provided, that if ratification is not forthcoming, management will make all reasonable efforts to cancel or annul the transaction. Our management will update the Audit Committee as to any material changes to any approved or ratified related person transaction and will provide a status report at least annually of all then current related person transactions. No director may participate in approval of a related person transaction for which he or she is a related person.

Relationships and Transactions with Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Stockholders

Zeta's Related Party Transactions

The following includes a summary of transactions since January 1, 2021 and any currently proposed transactions to which we were or are expected to be a participant in which (1) the amount involved exceeded or will exceed \$120,000, and (2) any of our directors, executive officers or holders of more than 5% of our capital stock, or any affiliate or member of the immediate family of the foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensation and other arrangements that are described under the section titled "Executive and Director Compensation."

Related Party Transactions

Payment to the Caivis Group

Caivis Acquisition Corp. II, Caivis Acquisition Corp. IV, Caivis Investment Company V, LLC and Caivis Investment Company VI, LLC (collectively, the "Caivis Group") are entities in which David Steinberg, our Chief Executive Officer, owns a controlling interest. During the year ended on December 31, 2021, we paid \$0.5 million to the Caivis Group in satisfaction of previously outstanding payables under an agreement that was terminated in 2019 pursuant to which the Caivis Group provided support for our general administrative and corporate development activities. We had no outstanding payable to the Caivis Group as of December 31, 2021.

Acquisition of Kinetic Data Solutions, LLC

On March 1, 2021, we entered into a merger agreement with the sellers of Kinetic Data Solutions, LLC ("Kinetic"), an entity controlled by our Chief Executive Officer, to purchase all of the issued and outstanding stock of Kinetic.

The fair value of the purchase consideration was estimated at \$2.8 million. We also issued 306,749 shares of our Series A common stock with a fair value of \$2.7 million and agreed to pay certain earn-outs over a period of three years from the acquisition date in an aggregate amount of up to \$0.02 million in restricted shares of our Class A common stock, based on the operating performance of the acquired business after the closing date.

Acquisition of Vital Digital Group, Inc.

On March 3, 2021, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with the sellers of Vital Digital Group, Inc. ("Vital"), an entity in which the Caivis Group owned a 5% interest, to purchase all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Vital. The fair value of the purchase consideration for this transaction was determined as \$8.9 million, with \$3.4 million in cash, 306,748 shares of Series A common stock with a fair value of \$2.7 million, up to \$2.3 million in earnouts based on the operating performance of the acquired business after the closing date, and \$0.6 million in cash holdback.

Agreement with Casting Made Simple Corp.

Casting Made Simple Corp. ("CMS") is an entity owned by the Caivis Group and the Chief Executive Officer's spouse. On December 28, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with CMS to monetize traffic generated through websites owned by CMS and give a profit share to CMS. The Company recognized \$249 and \$342 for the year ended December 31, 2021 and December 2020, respectively as direct cost of revenues in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, representing the profit shared by the Company with CMS. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had outstanding payables of \$20 and \$70, respectively to CMS and included in the "accounts payable and accrued expenses" in the consolidated balances sheets.

Executive Officer and Director Compensation

Please see "Executive and Director Compensation" for information regarding the compensation of our directors and executive officers.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into offer letter agreements with our executive officers that, among other things, provide for certain compensatory and change in control benefits, as well as severance benefits. For a description of these agreements with our named executive officers, see the section titled "Executive and Director Compensation—Executive Employment Agreements."

Indemnification Agreements

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and our Amended and Restated Bylaws provide that we will indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. We have entered into indemnification agreements with our current directors and certain of our executive officers. These indemnification agreements, among other things, require us to indemnify our directors and officers for certain expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred by a director or officer in any action or proceeding arising out of their services as a director or officer, or any other company or enterprise to which the person provides services at our request.

Policies and Procedures for Transactions with Related Persons

We have adopted a policy that our executive officers, directors, nominees for election as a director, beneficial owners of more than 5% of any class of our common stock and any members of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons are not permitted to enter into a related person transaction with us without the approval or ratification of our audit committee. Any request for us to enter into a transaction with an executive officer, director, nominee for election as a director, beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of our common stock or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons, in which such person would have a direct or indirect material interest, must be presented to our board of directors or our audit committee for review, consideration and approval. In approving or rejecting any such proposal, our audit committee is to consider the relevant facts of the transaction, including whether the transaction is on terms comparable to those that could be

obtained in arm's length dealings with an unrelated third party and the extent of the related person's interest in the transaction, and shall also take into account the conflicts of interest and corporate opportunity provisions of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

STOCKHOLDERS' PROPOSALS

Stockholders who intend to have a proposal considered for inclusion in our proxy materials for presentation at our 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act must submit the proposal to our Secretary at our offices at 3 Park Ave, 33rd Floor, New York, NY 10016 in writing not later than December 30, 2022.

Stockholders intending to present a proposal at the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, but not to include the proposal in our proxy statement, or to nominate a person for election as a director, must comply with the requirements set forth in our Amended and Restated Bylaws. Our Amended and Restated Bylaws require, among other things, that our Secretary receive written notice from the stockholder of record of their intent to present such proposal or nomination not earlier than the 120th day and not later than the 90th day prior to the anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting. Therefore, we must receive notice of such a proposal or nomination for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders no earlier than February 13, 2023 and no later than March 15, 2023. The notice must contain the information required by the Amended and Restated Bylaws, a copy of which is available upon request to our Secretary. In the event that the date of the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after June 13, 2023, then our Secretary must receive such written notice not later than the close of business on the 90th day prior to the 2023 Annual Meeting or, if later, the close of business on 10th day following the day on which public disclosure of the date of such meeting is first made by us.

In addition to satisfying the foregoing requirements under the Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws, to comply with the universal proxy rules, stockholders who intend to solicit proxies in support of director nominees other than the Company's nominees must provide notice that sets forth the information required by Rule 14a-19 under the Exchange Act no later than April 14, 2023.

We reserve the right to reject, rule out of order, or take other appropriate action with respect to any proposal that does not comply with these or other applicable requirements.

OTHER MATTERS

Our Board of Directors is not aware of any matter to be presented for action at the Annual Meeting other than the matters referred to above and does not intend to bring any other matters before the Annual Meeting. However, if other matters should come before the Annual Meeting, it is intended that holders of the proxies named on the Company's proxy card will vote thereon in their discretion.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

The accompanying proxy is solicited by and on behalf of our Board of Directors, whose Notice of Annual Meeting is attached to this proxy statement, and the entire cost of our solicitation will be borne by us. In addition to the use of mail, proxies may be solicited by personal interview, telephone, e-mail and facsimile by our directors, officers and other employees who will not be specially compensated for these services. We will also request that brokers, nominees, custodians and other fiduciaries forward soliciting materials to the beneficial owners of shares held by the brokers, nominees, custodians and other fiduciaries. We will reimburse these persons for their reasonable expenses in connection with these activities.

Certain information contained in this proxy statement relating to the occupations and security holdings of our directors and officers is based upon information received from the individual directors and officers.

We intend to file a proxy statement and WHITE proxy card with the SEC in connection with the solicitation of proxies for our 2023 annual meeting. Stockholders may obtain our proxy statement (and any amendments and supplements thereto) and other documents as and when filed by us with the SEC without charge from the SEC's website at: www.sec.gov.

ZETA'S ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

A copy of Zeta's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, including financial statements and schedules thereto but not including exhibits, as filed with the SEC, will be sent to any stockholder of record on April 18, 2022 without charge upon written request addressed to:

Zeta Global Holdings Corp. Attention: Secretary 3 Park Ave, 33rd Floor New York, NY 10016

A reasonable fee will be charged for copies of exhibits. You also may access this proxy statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K at www.edocumentview.com/ZETA. You also may access our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 at www.investors.zetaglobal.com.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, WE URGE YOU TO VOTE YOUR SHARES VIA THE TOLL-FREE TELEPHONE NUMBER OR OVER THE INTERNET, AS DESCRIBED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT. IF YOU RECEIVED A COPY OF THE PROXY CARD BY MAIL, YOU MAY SIGN, DATE AND MAIL THE PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED RETURN ENVELOPE. PROMPTLY VOTING YOUR SHARES WILL ENSURE THE PRESENCE OF A QUORUM AT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND WILL SAVE US THE EXPENSE OF FURTHER SOLICITATION.

By Order of the Board of Directors

/s/ Steven Vine

Steven Vine General Counsel and Secretary

New York, NY April 29, 2022